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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of the Authority
South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority
Columbia, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority as of and
for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998 aslisted in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Authority's management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial

audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuresin the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonabl e basis for our opinion.

Asdescribed in Note 1, the financial statements of the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority are intended to
present the financial position and results of its operations and cash flows of the proprietary fund type of only that portion of
the funds of the State of South Carolinaattributable to the transactions of the South Carolina State Education Assistance
Authority.

Inour opinion, the financial statementsreferred to above present fairly, in al material respects, thefinancial position of the
South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority as of June 30, 1999 and 1998, and the results of its operations and cash
flows of its proprietary fund type for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated September 3, 1999 on our
consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.
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Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of the South Carolina State
Education Assistance Authority taken as awhole. The accompanying supplementary information in Schedules 1 through 5is
presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not arequired part of the financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations andisnot a
required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and, in our opinion, isfairly stated in al material respectsin relation to the financial statements
taken asawhole.

The required supplementary information - Y2K Issuein Section |11 isnot arequired part of the financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and do not express an opinion on it. In
addition, we do not provide assurance that the Authority is or will become Year 2000 compliant, that the Authority’s Y ear
2000 remediation effortswill be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the Authority does business are or
will become Y ear 2000 compliant.

September 3, 1999



ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Demand Deposit
Deposits Underinvested (Overinvested)
Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted:
Deposits Underinvested (Overinvested)
Investments

Prepaid Expense

Receivables:
Current Portion of Finance Loans
Current Portion of Student Loans - FISL
Due from South Carolina Student Loan Corporation
Accrued Interest Receivable
Federal Reinsurance Receivable
Loan Processing and Issuance Fee Receivable
Default Aversion Fee Receivable
Miscellaneous
Administrative Cost Allowance

Total Current Assets

Long-Term and Other Assets:
Receivables:
Finance Loans, Less Current Portion
Student Loans - FISL, Less Current Portion
Deferred Cost of Issuance of Bonds

Investments
Restricted Assets:
Investments
Total Long-Term and Other Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment:
Fumniture and Equipment
Automobile

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Property, Plant & Equipment

Total Assets
See Notes to Financial Statements.

EXHIBIT A

Sheet 1
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY
COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS - ALL FUND TYPES
JUNE 30. 1999 AND 1998
1999 1998
Governmental Proprietary Governmental Proprietary
Fund Type Fund Type Totals Fund Type Fund Type Totals
Special Enterprise (Memorandum Special Enterprise (Memorandum
Revenue Fund Fund Only) Revenue Fund _Fund Only)
$ 74,996 $ . $ 74,996 $ 48,859 § '3 48,859
127,468 127,468 979,479 979,479
106,862,315 106,862,315 103,009,474 103,009,474
3,190,000 3,190,000 (400) 400)
19,901,843 19,901,843 19,650,838 19,650,838
255,367 255,367 205,187 205,187
69,543,309 69,543,309 63,000,000 63,000,000
3,525 3,525 4,334 4,334
6,469,818 6,469,818 6,128,847 6,128,847
931,159 931,159 975,667 975,667
3,376,848 3,376,848 1,613,498 1,613,498
150,040 150,040
1,479,043 1,479,043
90,143 90,143
832,856 832,856
$ 74,996 $ 212,380,878 § 212455874 § 48859 § 196,399,780 § 196,448,639
$ $ 291,995,886 $ 291,995,886 $ $ 264,340,113 §$ 264,340,113
9,911 9,911 12,186 12,186
1,058,976 1,058,976 1,265,242 1,265,242
2,732,086 2,732,086 6,757,851 6,757,851
16,652,949 16,652,949 14,171,140 14,171,140
$ $ 312,449,808 $ 312,449.808 $ $ 286,546,532 § 286,546,532
$ $ 262,945 $ 262,945 $ $ $
13,100 13,100
(45,327) (45,327)
$ - $ 230,718 § 230,718 § ‘
$ 74,996 $ 525,061,404 $ 525,136,400 $ 48,859 § 482946312 § 482,995,171




£~

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Arbitrage Rebate Payable to Federal Government
Compensated Absences
Due to Federal Government
Due to South Carolina Student Loan Corporation
Default Aversion Fees Payable
Payable from Restricted Assets:

Current Maturities of Bonds Payable

Accrued Bond Interest Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Bond Payable, Less Current Maturities, Deferred Amount

of Debt Refunding of $ 445,080 in 1999 and $ 599,652 in 1998

and Bond Premium and Discounts of $ 3.416.351 in 1999 and
$3.454.658 in 1998

Total Liabilities

Fund Equity:
Retained Eamnings:

Reserved for Bond Indentures - Current Debt Service -
1979 Resolution

Reserved for Bond Indentures - Current Debt Service -
1993 Resolution

Reserved for Bond Indentures - 1979 Resolution

Reserved for Bond Indentures - 1993 Resolution

Unreserved
Total Fund Equity

EXHIBIT A

‘ Sheet 2
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY
COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS - ALL FUND TYPES
JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998
1999 1998
Governmental Proprietary Governmental Proprietary
Fund Type Fund Type Totals Fund Type Fund Type Totals
Special Enterprise (Memorandum Special Enterprise (Memorandum
Revenue Fund Fund Only) Revenue Fund Fund Only)
$ 136,223 136,223 $ 182,359 182,359
946,500 946,500 453,377 453,377
‘ 74,955 74,955 ‘ 60,151 60,151
74,996 ‘ 74,996 48,859 ‘ 48,859
8,705,491 8,705,491 5,985,096 5,985,096
1,479,043 1,479,043
9,770,000 9,770,000 1,270,000 1,270,000
5,130,246 5,130,246 5,582,216 5,582,216
74,996 § 26,242,458 26,317,454 48,859 § 13,533,199 13,582,058
- 8 375,677,680 375,677,680 - $ 361,970,689 361,970,689
74,996 $ 401,920,138 401,995,134 48859 $ 375,503,888 375,552,747
$ 1,230,297 ,230,297 $ | 1,945,632 ,945,632 |
11,942,806 11,942,806 4,624,430 4,624,430
8,008,026 8,008,026 19,495,991 19,495,991
77,051,567 77,051,567 59,968,655 59,968,655
24,908,570 24,908,570 21,407,716 21,407,716
- § 123,141,266 123,141,266 - 3 107,442,424 107,442,424
74,996 $ 525,061,404 525,136,400 48,859 § 482,946,312 482,995,171

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity

See Notes to Financial Statements. ‘




EXHIBITB

SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUE. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPE

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 1999 AND 1998

Special Revenue Fund
1999 1998
Revenue.
[ .oan Princinal and Interest Collected $ $
Expenditures.
R funded to ederal Governmen L 613 13 ,562

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditur $ $
Fund Balance. Beginning

al ndi $ $

See N tes to ial tatements.



SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUE. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998

Operating Revenue:
United States Department of Education:
Administrative Cost Allowance
Loan Processing and Issuance Fee
Account Maintenance Fee
Supplemental Preclaims Assistance Income
Default Aversion Fee Income

Retention on Default Collections (Net of Payments to Federal
Government of $ 2,422,558 in 1999 and $ 2,169,682 in 1998)

Insurance Premiums
Income From South Carolina Student Loan Corporation:
Subsidized Interest
Special Allowance
Non-Subsidized Interest
Late Charges
Miscellaneous Payments of Student Loans
Investment Income
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments
Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Personnel

Contractual
General Operating
South Carolina Student Loan Corporation for Operating Costs
Bond Interest Expense
Amortization - Deferred Cost of Bond Issuance
Default Aversion Fee Expense
Other Fees
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Arbitrage Expense

Net Income

Retained Earnings. Beginning

Retained Earnings, Ending

See Notes to Financial Statements.

'EXHIBIT C

Enterprise Fund
1999 1998
$ 862,335 $ 954,507
377,279
1,177,090
301,266 520,005
1,479,043
,169,193 923,102
974,225 1,046,194
3,517,765 4.428.335
4,097,885 3,113,734
23,725,825 23,401,183
356,242 375,808
190 1,070
7,787,068 7,871,003
(665,822) 1,072,689
$ 45,159,584 $ 44,707,630
$ 1,509,361 $ 1,182,651
229,652 277,437
477,059 391,719
5,182,592 5,469,093
18,349,448 20,274,864
118,732 139,640
1,479,044
1,621,731 931,573
$ 28,967,619 $ 28,666,977
$ 16,191,965 $ 16,040,653
$ (493,123) $ (153,377)
$ 15,698,842 $ 15,887,276
107,442,424 91,555,148
$ 123,141266 $ 107,442 424




SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Finance Loan Advances to South Carolina Student Loan Corporation for
Student Loans

Finance Loan Payments Received from South Carolina Student Loan Corporation

Payments Received on FISL Loans
Purchase of Student Loans Due to Loan Guarantees
Payments Received from U.S. Department of Education Under
Federal Reinsurance Program
Amortization of Cost of Bond Issuance
Amortization of Deferred Amount on Refunding - Interest Expense
Amortization of Premiums and Discounts on Bonds Payable - Interest Expense
Investment Income (Investing Activities Category)
Depreciation Expense
Net (Increase) Decrease in Fair Value of Investments Reported as Cash
Equivalents (InvestingActivities Category)
Bond Interest Expense (Noncapital Financing Activities Category)
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expense
(Increase) Decrease in Due from South Carolina Student Loan Corporation
(Increase) Decrease in Administrative Cost Allowance Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Loan Processing and Issuance Fee Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Default Aversion Fee Receivable
(Increase) in Miscellaneous Receivables
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Default Aversion Fees Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences Liability
Increase (Decrease) in Due to South Carolina Student Loan Corporation
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Issuing Revenue Bonds for Student Loans
Transfer of Current Bonds Payable to Debt Service Accounts
Repayment of Revenue Bonds
Transfer to Current Bonds Payable from Sinking Account
Cost of Bond Issuance
Payments of Bond Premium
Payment of Bond Call Premium

See Notes to Financial Statements.

'EXHIBIT D

Sheet 1
Enterprise Fund
1999 1998
16,191,965 $ 16,040,653

(110,856,367) (34,774,122)
76,657,285 62,172,576
3,084 3,879
(14,345,137) (11,642,408)
12,581,787 11,062,943
118,732 139,641
154,572 75,080
378,172 364,547
(7,787,069) (7,871,003)
45,327
665,822 (1,072,689)
17,816,705 19,835,237
(50,180) (205,187)
(340,971) 865,009
832,856 (140,844)
(150,040)
(1,479,043)
(90,143)
(46,136) 172,972
1,479,043
14,804 18,465
2,720,395 2,922,848
(5,484,537) 57,967,597
67,300,000 49,850,000
(53,340,000) (47,570,000)
(44,840,000) (78,165,000)
53,340,000 47,570,000
(82,954) (152,045)
(339,865) (287,137)
(275,400) (268,000)



Sheet 2
A STATE ED T. RITY
TATE H FLOW.
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
ENDED 0, 1999 1998
Enterprise Fund
1999 1998
Cash Flows from N ital Financing Activities (Continued):
Operating Transfers:
In from Other Accounts $ 260,964,424 $ 241,822,470
Out to Other Accounts (260,964,424) (241,822,470)
Interest Paid on Revenue Bonds (18,268,675) (21,360,745)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Noncapital Financing Activities $ 3,493,106 $ (50,382,927)
Purchase of Fixed Asscts $ (276,045) $
Net Cash (Used in) Capital and Related Financing Activities $ (276,045) $
ash from ing Activities:
Interest Received on Investment Securities $ 7,831,578 $ 8,269,232
Purchase of Investments (8,415,794) (6,011,263)
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of Investments 9,959,750 15,292,860
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments Reported as
Cash Equivalents (665,823) 723,852
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities $ 8,709,711 $ 17,550,829

$ 6,442,235 § 25,135,499

Beginning 123,639,391 97,780,040

Ending $ 130,081=626 $ 122,915,539

Interest Collected on Finance and FISL Loans - Operatmg Activities §__26902,619 § 28,694,527

Rebate Liability Related to NonoperatmgArbmge Rebate Expense -

Non-Capital Financing Activities $ 493123 §
Amortization of Deferred Cost of Isusance of Bonds - Operating Activity $ 170,488 § 244,059
Amortization of Deferred Amount on Debt Refunding - Operating Activity $ 445388 $ 512,059_




EXHIBITE
Sheet 1
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

11

Reporting Entity:

The core of the financial reporting entity isthe primary government which has a separately elected governing
body. Asrequired by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial reporting entity includes both
the primary government and all of its component units. Component units are legally separate organizations
for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. In turn, component
units may have component units.

An organization other than a primary government may serve as anucleus for areporting entity when it issues
separate financial statements. Accordingly, the financial reporting entity includes both the Authority (a
primary entity) and all of its component units. However, based on the application of the following criteria,
the Authority has determined it has no component units.

The primary entity is financially accountableif it appoints avoting magjority of the organization's governing
body including situations in which the voting majority consists of the primary entity's officials serving as
required by law (e.g., employees who serve in an ex officio capacity on the component unit's board are
considered appointments by the primary entity) and (1) it is able to imposeits will on that organizationor(2)
thereisapotential for the organization to provide specific financial benefitsto, or impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary entity. The primary entity also may be financially accountable if an organizationis
fiscally dependent on it even if it does not appoint avoting majority of the board. An organizationisfiscaly
dependent on the primary entity that holds one or more of the following powers:

(N Determine its budget without another government's having the authority to approve and
modify that budget.

2 Levy taxes or set rates or chargeswithout approval by another government.

3 I ssue bonded debt without approval by another government.

In June 1991, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity. The Authority implemented the statement in 1994. Adoption of this statement
had no effect on the nature of the reporting entity. The South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority
(Authority) isabody politic and corporate and a public instrumentality of the State of South Carolina. The
Authority isapart of the State of South Carolinacreated by Act No. 433 of the Acts and Joint Resolutions of
the General Assembly for the year 1971, now codified as Chapter 115, Title 59 of the Code of Laws of South
Caroling, 1976, asamended. The Authority isgoverned by its members, who under the Act are the members
of the State Budget and Control Board (Board). The Board consists of five (5) members by virtue of their
position in state government. They are the Governor, Treasurer, Comptroller General, Chairman of Senate
Finance Committee and Charman of South Carolina House of Representatives




EXHIBIT E
Sheet 2
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (Continued):

11

Reporting Entity (Continued):

Ways and Means Committee. The accompanying financial statements conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governments.

Thefinancial statements of the reporting entity present the financia position, results of operations and cash
flows solely of the Authority and do not include any component units, organizations, or other funds of the
State of South Carolina.

The Authority is considered to be part of the State of South Carolina (the primary government) because of the
common Board and its financial accountability over the Authority. The funds of the Authority areincluded in
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of South Carolina.

The Authority has been authorized by the State of South Carolinato issue revenue bonds for the purpose of
making student loans. The Authority has approved South Carolina Student Loan Corporation (SCSLC) asan
eligible lender under its program and has designated it as the private, non-profit agency to administer these
loans. Itistheduty of SCSLC to process applications, make student loans and collect principal, interest, fees
and penalties on such loans. Loans may or may not be subsidized. Interest is paid on subsidized loans during
the enrolled, grace, and deferred periods by the U.S. Department of Education. Upon entering the repayment
period, the interest is paid by the borrower. Also, the U.S. Department of Education pays SCSLC a special
allowance which is based on a variable percentage of the unpaid principal of the loans. Thisincomeisa
reimbursement to help offset administrative expenses and payments of bonds. SCSLC remits this income
along with the principal and interest collected on loans to the Authority asit isreceived.

The operations of the Authority are administered by employees of SCSLC. The Authority reimburses
SCSLC upon request for the actual operating costs and expenses (personnel, contractual and general
operating) incurred in the administration of the program in accordance with a previously approved budget.
All leases are in the name of SCSLC and the Authority pays its pro rata share based on space occupied,
equipment usage, and |oan servicing costs.

Neither the Authority nor SCSLC is considered a component unit of the other because each is a legally
separate organization and not financially accountable to/for the other.



EXHIBITE
Sheet 3
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (Continued):

12

Fund Accounting:

The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operation of each fund is accounted for with a separate set of self-bdancng accounts
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenue and expenses.

Government resources are allocated to and are accounted for inindividual funds based upon the purposesfor
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The variousfundsare
grouped, in the financial statementsin thisreport, into two categories: governmental and proprietary. Each
category isdivided into separate fund types.

Governmental Fund Type:

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions of the Authority are financed.
The acquisition, use and balances of the Authority's expendable financia resources and the related liabilities
(except those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The
measurement focus is upon determination of changes in financial position, rather than upon net income
determination. The Special Revenue Fund is the Authority's only Governmental Fund Type and is used to
account for the proceeds of special revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes, specifically, the disbursement of teacher scholarships.

Proprietary Fund Type:

The Enterprise Fund isthe Authority's only Proprietary Fund Type. The Enterprise Fund is used to account
for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises- wherethe
intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or
servicesto the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges;
or where the governing body hasdecided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expensesincurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability,
or other purposes. The Authority's Enterprise Fund reports the activities to fulfill the entity's authorized
purpose of issuing revenue bonds to finance student loans which are handled by South Carolina Student Loan
Corporation. The Authority's Enterprise Fund is composed of the sinking, debt reserve, loan, agency
operating, and the federal student loan reserve account. These accounts, except for the federal student loan
reserve account and agency operating, constitute pledged income for the liquidation of outstanding bonds
after transfers for operations. Retained Earningsis an equity account reflecting accumulated earnings of an
enterprise fund and reserves are established to segregate a portion of that entity in accordance with legal or
contractual provisions. The Authority reports retained earnings reserved for current debt service as



EXHIBITE
Sheet 4
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (Continued):

12

Fund A ccounting (Continued):
Proprietary Fund Type (Continued):

the accrued interest plus ten months of the outstanding bond principal due as of year end asrequired by the
bond indentures (see Note 7). Under the 1979 Bond Resolution, reserved for bond indentures represents net
assets for future debt service and includes ten percent of the original bond principal for any issues that remain
outstanding, three percent of the outstanding bond principal balance and principal and interest collected on
student loans not yet required to meet current debt service. Under the 1993 Bond Resolution, reserved for
bond indentures represents net assets for future debt service and includes six months interest to become due
on the principal amount or three percent of the outstanding bond principa as specified under each bond series
plus principal and interest collected on student loans not yet required to meet current debt service or used to
make student loans. Under both bond resol utions, the reserved for bond indentures also includes one to four
months projected operating expenses and any unamortized costs of issuances. The unreserved istheresidual

equity not legally reserved for bond indentures.

The sinking account is used to deposit the proceeds from the sale of bonds and collectionsonloansinduding
federal interest and other resources so designated, such as gifts, grants, appropriations and income from

SCSL C which, aslender, bills the Department of Education directly. All investment income on investments
in the debt reserve part of the sinking fund is recorded in the sinking fund as required by the bond indentures.
The sinking account is used to make transfers to the debt reserve and loan accounts. While this account may
experience a deficit balance, thisis not aviolation of the bond indentures. Thetotal Enterprise Fund hasa
positive balance.

The debt reserve account is a part of the sinking account. Simultaneously with the issuance and delivery of
any series of bonds, the Authority isrequired to deposit monies equal to the debt reserve requirements, based
on a percentage of outstanding bonds, into the debt reserve account. These requirementsinclude the forward
funding of the debt service monies necessary to make debt service account interest, principal and cumulative
sinking fund payments when due and payable. The current debt service account must contain accrued interest
payable and a portion of the outstanding bond principal as of June 30, as required in the bond indentures.
The balance of the account for future debt service consists of aportion of the origina bond issue and aportion
of the outstanding balance.



EXHIBITE
Sheet 5
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (Continued):

12

Fund Accounting (Continued):
Proprietary Fund Type (Continued):

Theloan account is used to deposit bond proceeds which are transferred from the sinking account for the
purpose of making loans and paying the cost of issuance of bonds. Other transfers from the sinking account
are deposited into the loan account to reimburse monies which have been transferred to SCSLC for
operations.

The Federal Student Loan Reserve Account is used for all funds required to be accounted for in this account
by the 1998 reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. This account is used to account for investment
income and insurance premiums withheld from borrower’ sloans. The Authority has not charged insurance
premiums for loans guaranteed since March 1, 1999; however, the Authority reserves the right to reinstate
such charges at such times and in such lawful amounts as it deems appropriate. Amounts in the Federal
Student Loan Reserve Account can only be used to pay lender claims on defaulted loans and to disburse
default aversion fees to the Agency Operating Account for default aversion activities. Upon payment to
lenders for defaulted loans, these funds are then reimbursed to the Federal Student L oan Reserve Account by
the U. S. Department of Education at a percentage determined by the Authority’ s default rate. Paymentsto
lenders for defaulted loans are recorded as Federal Reinsurance Receivables. Reimbursement by the U. S.
Department of Education reduces the Federal Reinsurance Receivable. The Authority has always received
the maximum reimbursement allowable under the Supplemental Guarantee Agreement and does not
anticipate falling below thislevel (See Note 3).

The Guarantee Agency Operating Account is used to account for all loan processing and issuance fees,
account maintenance fees, default aversion fees, and the retention on default collections. The U. S.
Department of Education pays all of the fees except the default aversion fees reimbursed by the Federal
Student Loan Reserve Account. The loan processing issuance fee is equal to 0.65% of the total principal
amount of loans originated during the fiscal year. The account maintenance fee is equal to 0.12% of the
average original principal balance of loans outstanding for thefiscal year. The default aversion feeisequal to
one percent of the principal and interest of aloan upon which default aversion activity was performed. Thisis
reimbursed from the Federal Student Loan Reserve Account. Should this loan subsequently default, the
default aversion fee is refunded back to the Federal Student Loan Reserve Account. Retention on Default
Collections are reported by the Authority directly to the Department of Education for servicesit performsin
itsrole as guarantor. The Authority recognizesincome related to a specified portion (24% in 1999 and 27%
in 1998) of collections adjusted for certain items made on behalf of the Federal government on defaulted
loans. The remaining balance of collectionsis remitted to the Federal government. Thetotal cumulative
value at June 30, 1999 and 1998 of all defaulted student loans purchased by the Authority is $
63,992,165 and



EXHIBIT E
Sheet 6
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 AND 1998

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (Continued):

12

13

Fund Accounting (Continued):
Proprietary Fund Type (Continued):

$ 49,647,028, respectively (See Note 3). The Authority records the purchased defaulted |oans as assets, but
only recognizes its portion of the share of any recoveriesin the year of collection. Fundsin the Operating
Account can only be used for application processing, |oan disbursement, enrollment and repayment status
management, permitted default prevention activities, default collection activities, school and lender training,
compliance monitoring and other student financial aid related actives as determined by the Secretary andfor
voluntary irrevocable transfers to the Federal Student Loan Reserve Account. Except for funds transferred
from the Federal Student Loan Reserve Account, the Guarantee Agency Operating Account is considered to
be the property of the guarantee agency.

See Note 14 for changes in classifications in 1999 from 1998. The Authority established the accounts
required under the 1998 Reauthorization of the Higher Education Act, changed the use of the loan account,
and reclassified the balance in the Loan Guarantee Reserve Account to the Federal Student Loan Reserve
Account effective July 1, 1998. However, to facilitate comparisons of fiscal year 1999 and fiscal year 1998
activity balances, the fiscal year 1998 amounts as presented in the Authority’ s previously issued fiscal year
1998/fiscal year 1997 report have been restated to the new Enterprise Fund Account structure.

Basis of Accounting:

The modified accrua basis of accounting is used by the governmental fund. Under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, revenue is recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., is both measurable and available.
Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities.
Federal grants and the earnings on the deposited federal funds are recorded as revenue when the related
scholarships are awarded and the balance of federal dollars not yet awarded are reported as deferred revenue.
Expenditures are recorded when the liability isincurred.

The accrual basis of accounting is used for the proprietary fund. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenue is recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when incurred. Investment income is
recorded at stated interest dates with no amortization of premiums or discounts. Netincreasse (decrease) inthe
fair value of investments include unrealized and realized gains and losses. Bond payable premiums and
discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds and netted against interest expense.

The Authority applies all Gvernment Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements and all
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989,
when not in conflict with GASB pronouncements. In accordance with GASB Statement 20, the A uthority
has el ected not to implement FASB Statements 103 and after.
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Budget and Budgetary Accounting:

All revenue and expenditures for the Special Revenue Fund are budgeted in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Asaresult, no changes are necessary in presenting a comparison of budget
and actual expendituresin the Statements of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget
and Actual - All Budgeted Funds. Certain expenses for the Enterprise Fund are budgeted as a management
control device. However, the cost of issuing bonds, SCSL C expenses, interest expense, reinsurance and other
fees and revenue are not budgeted. Generally accepted accounting principles do not require a comparison of
budget to actual expenses for the Enterprise Fund.

These budgets ae approved by the SCSLC Board and the State Treasurer and are not adopted by the
Legislature or printed in the Appropriations Act. The Authority is subject to State laws and regulations.

Expenditures in excess of the budgeted amounts are not in violation of State laws. However, these are
approved by the Board.

Total Columns on the Combined Statements:

Total columns on the Combined Balance Sheets are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that they are
presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Compensated Absences:

Depending on length of employment, employees earn annual vacation at the rate of ten (10) to twenty (20)
days per year. Employees are encouraged to use all annual vacation earned in agiven year and expected to
use at least one week (5 consecutive days) each year. An employee may not carry forward more than five (5)

vacation days to the next year without the supervisor's permission. Earned, but unused, annual vacation will

be paid when an employee terminates employment except when thistermination isinvoluntary or inadequate
noticeisgiven. Sick leaveisearned at the rate of 7 to 10 days per year depending on length of employment.
An employee may not carry forward more than sixty (60) sick daysto the next year without the supervisor's
approval. Employees are not paid for earned, but unused, sick days upon termination of employment. The
Authority calculates the gross compensated absences liability based on recorded balances of unused vacation
leave, compensatory holiday, and overtime leave for those specific SCSLC employees who administer

Authority operations. The entire unpaid liability for which the employer expects to compensate employees
through paid time off or cash payments, inventoried at fiscal year-end current salary costs and the cost of the
saary-related benefit payments, is recorded in the enterprise fund loan account. The net change in the
liability isrecorded in the current year in the personnel expenses.
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Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assetsand liabilitiesat
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The amounts shown in the financial statements as "cash and cash equivalents" represent cash on deposit in
banks, cash on hand with the State Treasurer and cash invested in various instruments by the State Treasurer
as part of the State'sinternal cash management pool.

Because the State’ sinternal cash management pool operates as a demand deposit account, amounts invested
inthe pool are classified as cash and cash equivalents. The State Treasurer administers the cash management
pool. The pool includes some long-term investments such as obligations of the United States and certain
agencies of the United States, obligations of the State of South Carolina and certain of its political
subdivisions, certificates of deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements, and certain corporate bonds. Most
State agencies participate in the cash management pool; however, some agency accounts are not included in
the pool because of restrictions on the use of the funds. For those accounts, cash equivalents include
investments in short-term, highly liquid securitiesincluding those that are classified as restricted having a
maturity at the time of purchase of three months or less.

The State'sinternal cash management pool consists of ageneral deposit account and several special deposit
accounts. The State records each fund’ s equity interest in the general deposit account; however, al earnings
on that account are credited to the General Fund of the State. The Authority records and reportsits deposits
in the general deposit account at cost. The Authority reportsits depositsin the special deposit accountsat fair
value. Investments held by the pool arerecorded at fair value. Interest earned by the agency's special deposit
accountsis posted to the agency's account at the end of each month and is retained by the agency. Interest
earnings are allocated based on the percentage of an agency's accumulated daily interest receivable to the total
undistributed interest received by the pool. Reported interest income includes interest earnings, realized
gains/losses, and unrealized gains/losses arising from changes in fair value of investments in the pool.
Realized gains and losses are alocated daily and are included in the accumulated income receivable.
Unrealized gains and losses are allocated at year-end based on the Authority’ s percentage ownershipinthe
pool.

Although the State’ sinternal cash management pool includes some long-term investments, it operatesasa
demand deposit account; therefore, for credit risk information pertaining to the State’s internal cash
management pool, see the deposits disclosuresin Note 2.
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Amortization of Deferred Cost of |ssuance of Bonds and Bond Premiums and Discounts:

Cost of issuance of bondsis being amortized over the lives of the bond issues on a straight-linebessandare
included in operating expenses. Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the terms of the bonds
using the straight-line method and are recorded as an addition or deduction to interest expense.

Deferred Amount of Debt Refunding:

The deferred amount of debt refunding isthe difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt. Reacquisition price is the amount required to repay previously issued debt in a
refunding transaction and it includes principal of the old debt plus any call premium. The net carrying
amount is the amount due at maturity, adjusted for any unamortized premium or discount and issuance costs
related to the old debt. The amount isbeing amortized as a component of interest expense on the straight line
basis over the shorter of the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt. It is being charged to
operations using the effective - interest method. This treatment appliesto debt refundings after July 1, 1994,

Risk Management:

The Authority is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Authority pays insurance
premiums to certain other State agencies to cover risksthat may occur in normal operations. Several State
funds accumul ate assets and the State itself assumes all risks for claims of State employees for unemployment
compensation benefits. In addition, the Authority pays premiumsto the State's I nsurance Resarve Fundwhich
accumul ates assets to cover general tort claims.

Premiums for worker's compensation, health insurance, property insurance including fixed assets, group life
and fidelity bonds are paid to private insurance carriers and the Authority's coverageissubject to thelimits of
these policies. The expense for these items are charged to the enterprise fund. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coveragein any of the past three fiscal years.

Deferred Compensation Agreement:

The Authority offers its employees a voluntary deferred compensation plan structured and operated in
accordance with provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plan is administered by the
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association and the Authority makes no contributions on behalf of the
participants. The Authority's liability islimited to

remitting amounts deferred and withheld from the empl oyees wages to the plan administrator.
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Property and Equipment:

Furniture, equipment and automobiles costing over $ 1,000 are capitalized at cost when purchased.
Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over useful lives of five to ten years for
furniture and equipment and three years for automobiles.

Deposits and | nvestments:

21

22

23

All deposits and investments of the Authority are under the control of the State Treasurer who, by law, has
sole authority for investing State funds. Certain of the Authority's deposits and investments are deposited
with or managed by the Bank of New York or Wachovia Bank, N.A. with the approval of the State
Treasurer's Office.

Deposits:

The Authority keeps certain monies in a pooled Composite Reservoir account and records each account's
equity in the pool. The accounts classified as "Deposits Underinvested (Overinvested)" in the financial
statements include such deposits on which income earned is apportioned based on each account of the
Enterprise Fund's pro rata equity in the pool. "Deposits Underinvested (Overinvested)" represents atemporary
situation in which investmentsin the various Enterprise Fund accounts exceed cash avail able for investment.
At June 30, 1999 and 1998, the Authority’s carrying amount of deposits and the bank balances were $
3,317,468 and $ 979,479, respectively

State law requires full collateralization of all State Treasurer balances. The State Treasurer must correct any
deficiencies in collateral within seven days. At June 30, 1999 and 1998, no deposits were on hand. If
present, all State Treasurer balances would be fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the State
or by its agentsin the State's name.

At June 30, 1999 and 1998, Wachovia Bank, N.A. carried a bank balance at $ 74,996 and $ 48,859,
respectively, of unspent federal grants for the Authority. These accountsare covered by FDIC insurance.
Except for this bank account and the underinvested monies on deposit with the Bank of New Y ork, all of the
Authority’ s deposits are handled by the State Treasurer. The deposits underinvested (overinvested) are cash
on deposit at the Bank of New Y ork being held until invested. For these deposits, the carrying amount and
bank balance are the same at fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998. At June 30, 1999 and 1998, all
amounts on deposits with the Bank of New Y ork were fully insured or collateralized with securities held by
the State or by its agent in the State’ s name.

Investments:

The accounts classified as "Investments" in the financial statements comprise monies held for the Authority
which arelegally restricted.

Investments are valued at fair value based on quoted market costs when available or otherwise at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction. The value of the Authority’ sinvestment
in the State’ sinternal cash management pool is determined based on the fair value of the pool’ s underlying
portfolio.
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No investments are valued at amortized cost. The cost and fair value of investments held for the various
accounts of the Authority were as follows at June 30, 1999 and 1998:

1999 1998
Cost Fair Vdue Cost Fair Vdue
Loan Account Investments- Bank of New Y ork:
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 5,198,657 $ 5199158 $ 1,290,700 $ 1,290,700
Bank Repurchase Agreements 52,730,843 52,730,843 63,304,224 63,304,224
U.S. Agency Bonds 9,813,343 9,813,995 9,197,025 9,369,633
Total $ 67742843 $ 67743996 $ _ 73791949 $ 73964557
L oan Account Investments - State Treasurer:
State Treasurer Internal Cash Management Pool $ 784144 $ 798934 $ _12799504 $ 13235385
Total Loan Account Investments $ 68526987 $ _68542930 $ _86591453 $ 87199942
Guarantee Agency Operating Account | nvestments -
State Treasurer:
State Treasurer Internal Cash Management Pool$ _ 1620488 $ _ 1641280 $ - $ -
Sinking Account Investments- Bank of New Y ork:
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 307,982 $ 307982 $ 5803 $ 5,803
Bank Repurchase Agreements 4,859,143 4,859,143 5.464.847 5,464,847
Total $ _ 5167125 % _ 5167125 $ _5470650 $ _ 5470650
Sinking Account Investments - State Treasurer:
State Treasurer Internal Cash Management Pool$ _15505287 $ 15778601 $_11,000.191 $ 11367105
Total Sinking Account |nvestments $ _20672412 $ 20945726 $ 16470841 $ 16,837,755
Debt Reserve Accounts Investments-
Bank of New York:
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 9589544 % 9725271 $ 9582401 $ 9,727,315
U.S. Agency Bonds 4,125,600 4,240,881 11,696,799 11,949,636
Bank Repurchase Agreements 22,588,641 22,588,640 12,145,028 12,145,028
Total Debt Reserve |nvestments $ 36303785 $ _36554.792 $ 33424228 $ _33.821.979
Federal Student L oan Reserve Account | nvestments-
Bank of New Y ork:
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 2,701,197 $ 2695297 $ 1,437,863 $ 1,442,030
Bank Repurchase Agreements 2671 2671
Total $ _2701197 $ _ 2695297 $ 1440534 $ _ 1444701
Federal Student L oan Reserve Account Investments-
State Treasurer:
State Treasurer Intemal Cash Management Pool$ _15478902 $ _15769,159 $ _ 415099 $ _ 4,284,926
Total Loan Reserve Investments $ 18180099 $ _18464456 $ 5591529 $ _ 5729627
Grand Totals $ 145303771 $ 146149193 $ 142078051 $ 143,589,303
Allocated As:
Cash Equivalents- Investments $ 106,069,118 $ 106,862,315 $ 102,037,048 $ 103,009,474
Investments 2,737,986 2,732,086 6,616,776 6,757,851
Restricted:
Cash Equivalents- Investments 19,901,843 19,901,843 19,680,299 19,650,838
Investments 16,594,824 16,652,949 13,743,928 14,171,140

Total $ 145303771 $ 146,149,103

142078051 $ 143589303
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Investments (Continued):

Investments are restricted by bond indentures to direct obligations of (or obligations guaranteed by) the
United States of America, interest bearing time deposits, certificates of deposit or repurchase agreementsfully
secured by direct obligations of the United States of America, and obligations of certain Federal Agenciesand
instrumentalities.

With respect to investments in the State's internal cash management pool, all of the State Treasurer's
investments are insured or registered or are investments for which the securities are held by the State or its
agent in the State's name. Information pertaining to the reported amounts, fair values, and credit risk of the
State Treasurer's investments is disclosed in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of
South Carolina.

Theinvestments at Bank of New Y ork are categorized to give an indication of thelevd of the custodial credit
risk assumed by the Authority at June 30, 1999 and 1998. Custodial credit risk istherisk that the Authority
will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party if the counter party to the investment transaction fails. Category 1 includesinvestmentsthat are
insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the Authority or its agent in the Authority's name.
Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker's
or dealer'strust department or agent in the Authority's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by itstrust department or agent but
not in the Authority'sname. All investments at Bank of New Y ork are Category 1 type investments.

Due to higher cash flows at certain times, the Authority’s investments in repurchase agreements, U. S.
Agency Bondsand Notesfluctuated. The maximum amounts held in repurchase agreements during the years
ending June 30, 1999 and 1998 were $ 80,178,626 and $ 80,916,769, respectively. The maximum amounts
of U.S. Agency Bonds held during the years ending June 30, 1999 and 1998 were $ 48,042,859 and $
56,346,143, respectively. The maximum amounts of U. S. Treasury notes held during the years ending June
30, 1999 and 1998 were $ 17,927,708 and $ 19,018,015, respectively. The investment types listed above
included al investment typesin which monies were held throughout the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 and
1998.

Student L oans and Federal Reinsurance of Student L oans:

In 1999 and 1998, these |oans bear interest at a fixed rate of 7% to 12% or an annual variable rate which isreset each
July 1 and which is equal to the bond equivalent rate of the 91-day Treasury Bill, determined at the final auction held
prior to theimmediately preceding June 1, plus 1.7 to 3.5 percent with acap on the rate of 8.25 to 9.00 percent. These
loans are repayable over a period of five (5) to ten (10) years with a minimum payment of $ 360 or $ 600 per year.
Repayment of principal is scheduled to begin six (6) to ten (10) months after the student graduates or ceases to be
enrolled on at least a half-time basisin an eligible institution.

Loans disbursed through the 1977-78 academic year are insured against death, disability and default by the U.S.
Department of Education pursuant to Title IV, Part B of the Higher Education Act of 1965 under the Federa
Insured Student Loan (FISL) Program. These FISL loanswere
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Student L oans and Federal Reinsurance of Student L oans (Continued):

made by the Authority before the Authority became a guarantor under the Guaranteed Student Loan Program. The
Authority is the lender of record on these FISL |oans and therefore these |oans appear on the Authority's financial
statements. No FISL loans have been made since 1978 and none will be made in the future.

L oans disbursed for the 1978-79 Academic year and subsequent years appear on SCSLC' sfinancial statements. These
loans are guaranteed by the Authority and reinsured by the U.S. Department of Education. (See Note 11). Up until
March 1, 1999, the Authority charged loan recipients an amount equal to one-half to 1% of the principal amount asan
insurance premium to remedy defaults on guaranteed student loans. The Authority can start charging an insurance
premium at any time, but current funds are deemed sufficient to pay defaults. Since the Authority entered into a
Supplemental Guarantee Agreement with the U.S. Department of Education in 1978, under which the Federal

government reinsures the Authority for amounts paid in connection with defaulted loans, the Authority has received
cumulative payments to date of $ 60,615,317 and $ 48,033,530 as of June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively, of federal
reinsurance. The percentage of the defaulted claimsto be reimbursed by the federal government is dependent upon the
Authority's default rate experience, asfollows:

Federal Payment for Federal Payment for Federal Payment for
Loans medeprior to Loansmade on or after Loans made on or after
Claims Rate October 1, 1993 October 1, 1993 October 1, 1998
0% up to 5% 100% of clams 98% of claims 95% of claims
5% up to 9% 100% of all claimsupto 5%; and 98% of all claimsupto5%; and  95% of claims up to 5%; and
90% of claims 5% and over 88% of claims 5% and over 85% of claims 5% and over
9% and over 100% of claims up to 5%; 98% of claims up to 5%; 95% of claims up to 5%;
90% of claims 5% and over up 88% of claims 5% and over up 85% of claims 5% and over
to 9%; and 80% of claims 9% to 9%; and 78% of claims 9% up to 9%; and 75% of claims
and over and over 9% and over

The calculation of the default rate is based upon the claims paid in agiven year as of the Federal government'sfiscad
year ending September 30 to the total loansin collection on the previous October 1. Based upon data maintained by
the Authority, the default rate in the period ended September 30, 1998 and 1997 was approximately .98% and .94%,
respectively. The A uthority expects the default rate to remain about 1%.

Note Receivable Finance L oans:

The September 18, 1979 bond issue requires that all funds advanced to SCSLC by the Authority for the purpose of
making student loans be evidenced by a note between the two parties. This note was set up on September 18, 1979in
the amount of the outstanding guaranteed student loans as of that date €$ 3,970,167). The noteisincreased by all
advances for the purpose of making loans and decreased by all student [oan principal paymentswhich are returned to
the Authority. At June 30, 1999, the 1979 bond resolution totaled $ 49,709,425 compared with $ 84,040,571 last year;
the 1993 bond resolution totaled $ 311,829,770 compared with $ 243,299,542 |ast year.

Amounts Due from/to SCSL C:

The $ 6,469,818 and $ 6,128,847 at June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively, amount due from SCSLC represents funds
duefor income earned, but not yet received, from the U.S. Department of Education and borrowers thus not remitted to
the Authority. The Authority also owes the SCSL C for funds collected on their behalf of $ 8,705,941 and $ 5,985,096
at June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Funds collected on behalf of the SCSLC are required to be paid to the SCSLC
by the tenth of each month.
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Designated for | oan Guarantees and Other Activities:

Asanincentivefor the states to set up state guarantee agencies, the U.S. Department of Education has made certain
funds available to the states to assist in establishing afederal student |oan reserve account which replaced the loan
guarantee account by the 1998 Reauthorization of the Higher Education Act (Act) on July 1, 1998. Maintenance of the
federal student loan reserve account will depend upon possible further Federal and State advances, investment income,
insurance premium on student loans if collected, and reinsurance payments from the U.S. Department of Education.
Prior to July 1, 1998, the account accumulated retention of default collections, administrative cost allowance and
supplemental preclaims assistance. The Act stopped this (See Note 14). The U.S. Department of Education reserved
the right to request repayment of advances under the Advance Agreement within such period asit deemed appropriate
in light of the maturity and solvency of the Authority's federal student |oan reserve account. As of June 30, 1999 and
1998, the Authority has reimbursed all such advancesto the U.S. Department of Education that they have requested.

The 1993 Amendments to the Higher Education Act, Section 422 of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended,

provides that the federal student |oan reserve account of all guaranty agencies under the Act shall be considered the

property of the United States to be used in connection with the Federal Fami I¥ Education Loan Programs and

Consolidation Loan Programs under Parts B and C of Title IV of the Act. The Act further providesthat the Secretary

may direct aguaranty agency to return to the Secretary a portion of itsfederal student loan reserve account which the

(Sesé:ere’flary g%ermi nes is unnecessary to pay the program expenses and contingent liabilities of the guaranty agency.
ote 13).

Effective July 1, 1998, the Act allowed a new account called the Guarantee Agency Operating Account to be
established. Asdescribed in Note 1.2, this account accumulates funds to operate the guarantee agency.

At June 30, 1999 and 1998, the portion of unreserved retained earnings designated for |oan guarantees and expenses of
the Authority asrequired by the U. S. Department of Education under the H|gq%rglgducat|on Act of 1%59% isasfollows:
L oan Guarantees Designated for Federal Government

(SeeNote 13) ) $ 21,267,074 $ 20657213
Designated for Guarantee Agency Operating Account 2,834,554
Unreserved, Undesignated 806,942 750,503

$ 24908570 $ 21407716



Bonds Payable and Restricted Assets:

The Authority issues Guaranteed Student Loan Revenue Bonds as needed to finance student loans. These bonds are secured by loans funded by bond
proceeds, related revenue from such loans, earnings on investments in related accounts and by adebt service reserve funded from bond proceeds. The bond
resol utions permit the Authority to accumulate borrowers' payments during the year to pay principal and interest on bondsasdue. The bonds do not constitute
adebt, liability or obligation of the State of South Carolina or apledge of the faith and credit of the State of South Carolina. As of year end, the current debt
service account must contain assets equal to the accrued interest payabl e plus ten months of the outstanding bond principal due the following September 1 as
required in the bond indentures. As of June 30, 1999 and 1998, the Authority was required to have assets deposited in the current debt service account of $
13,173,103 and $ 6,570,062. The Authority has more on deposit in investments recorded in the Debt Reserve Account than the current debt service
requirement in 1999 and 1998. The balance of restricted assetsin the debt reserve account ($ 39,744,792 in 1999 and $ 33,821,578 in 1998) will be used

to pay future debt service.

SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY
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Theinsured Student L oan Revenue bonds as of June 30, 1999 and 1998 follow:

Origina

| ssued Amount
11/01/88 $ 70,855,000
06/01/89 47,220,000
12/01/90 48,400,000
09/01/91 46,990,000
05/01/92 62,280,000
08/15/93 99,495,000
08/31/94 86,845,000
08/30/95 62,055,000
06/17/98 49,850,000
06/16/99 67,300,000

Interest
Rate

6.00-7.40%
6.60-7.10%
6.60-7.13%
5.50-6.50%
4.75-6.63%
3.5-5.55%
4.75-6.3%
5.00-6.00%
Auction
Auction

Maturity
Date

9/1/89-2003 $
9/1/90-2003
9/1/93-2005
9/1/94-2004
9/1/94-2006
9/1/97-2008
9/1/96-2008
9/1/96-2015
3/1/06-2033
9/1/07-2019

EXHIBITE
Sheet 15

Balance I ssued Balance I ssued Balance
Outstanding (Retired) Outstanding (Retired) Outstanding
6/30/97 During FY 98 6/30/98 During FY 99 6/30/99
8,650,000 $( 8,650,000) $
17,100,000 ( 17,100,000)
36,385,000 ( 14,850,000) 21,535,000 ( 21,535,000)
37,000,000 ( 10,500,000) 26,500,000 ( 6,500,000) 20,000,000
53,405,000 ( 11,110,000) 42,295,000 ( 5,775,000) 36,520,000
98,555,000 ( 14,430,000) 84,125,000 ( 11,030,000) 73,095,000
82,460,000 ( 1,525,000) 80,935,000 80,935,000
62,055,000 62,055,000 62,055,000
49,850,000 49,850,000 49,850,000
67,300,000 67,300,000

$ 395610.000 $(28315000) $ 367.295.000 $ 22.460.000 $ 389.755.000

The 1994, 1995, 1998 and 1999 bond issues include auction rate bonds totaling $ 199,100,000. Theinterest rate on these bonds varies every twenty-eight or
thirty-five days depending on auction rate bond investors. The effective interest rates for both 1999 and 1998 fiscal years has been approximately 4%. The
maximum interest rate is 12%.
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Bonds Payable and Restricted Assets (Continued):

The annual requirementsto retire these bonds as of June 30, 1999 are as follows:

Y ear Ended June 30, Principal Interest Totals
2000 $ 9,770,000 $ 15,150,722 $ 24,920,722
2001 25,050,000 17,041,916 42,091,916
2002 23,210,000 15,745,722 38,955,722
2003 26,935,000 14,287,295 41,222,295
2004 19,005,000 13,166,200 32,171,200
2005 19,995,000 12,054,067 32,049,067
2006 45,535,000 10,262,314 55,797,314
2007 16,920,000 8,743,660 25,663,660
2008 37,465,000 7,209,709 44,674,709
2009 38,870,000 5,618,709 44,488,709
2010 17,800,000 4,842,667 22,642,667
2011 4,368,000 4,368,000
2012 4,368,000 4,368,000
2013 4,368,000 4,368,000
2014 4,368,000 4,368,000
2015 52,050,000 2,633,000 54,683,000
2016 29,900,000 1,289,333 31,189,333
2017 1,090,000 1,090,000
2018 1,090,000 1,090,000
2019 23,700,000 774,000 24,474,000
2020 142,000 142,000
2021 142,000 142,000
2022 142,000 142,000
2023 142,000 142,000
2024 142,000 142,000
2025 142,000 142,000
2026 142,000 142,000
2027 142,000 142,000
2028 142,000 142,000
2029 142,000 142,000
2030 142,000 142,000
2031 142,000 142,000
2032 142,000 142,000
2033 3,550,000 94,667 3,644,667

Total $ 389756000 $ 10411981 $ 240166961
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Bonds Payable and Restricted Assets (Continued):

On June 17, 1998, the Authority issued $ 49,850,000 in Guaranteed Student Loan Revenue and Refunding Bonds
with a variable auction interest rate which is capped at 12.0 percent to refund $ 46,300,000 of outstanding 1988,
1989, 1990, 1991, 1992 and 1993 Bonds with an average interest rate of 6.0 percent and to provide financing
for student loans. The net proceeds of $ 46,300,000 after payment of $ 3,500,000 for a bond premium,
underwriting fees and other issuance costs were used to purchase U.S. Government securities and they were
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service payments. As a result,
these bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for these bonds has been removed from bonds payable.
On June 30, 1998, $ 46,300,000 of bonds outstanding were considered defeased. The refunding resulted in a
difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $ 512,059. This difference
is composed of the call premium of $ 268,000 and the amount of unamortized issue costs of $ 244,059 and is
reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable and is bei n? charged to
interest expense through the year 2002 amortized using the straight line basis over the remaining life of the old
debt. The Authority completed the refunding to have bonds under the 1993 bond resolution inst of 1979 bond
resolution. The refunding increases itstotal debt payments by $ 11,351,925 over the next nineteen years and obtains
an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $ 779,415.
Asof June 30, 1999, dl fundsin the irrevocable trust have been disbursed to pay debt service payments

On June 16, 1999, the Authority issued $ 67,300,000 in Guaranteed Student Loan Revenue and Refunding Bonds
with avariable auction interest rate which is capped at 12.0 percent to refund $ 43,570,000 of outstanding 1990,
1991, 1992 and 1993 Bonds with an average interest rate of 6.0 percent and to provide financing for student loans.
The net proceeds of $ 43,570,000 after payment of $ 23,730,000 for a bond premium ($ 275,400), underwriting fees
($ 339,865), other issuance costs ($ 82,954) and purchase of new student loans ($ 23,031,781) were used to purchase
U.S. Government securities and they were deposited in an irrevocabl e trust with an escrow ag?ent to provide all future
debt service payments. Asaresult, these bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for these bonds has
been removed from bonds payable. The refunding resulted in adifference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt of $ 445,888. This differenceis composed of the cal premium of $ 275,400 and
the amount of unamortized issue costs of $ 170,488 and is reported in the accompanying financial statementsasa
deduction from bonds payable and is being charged to interest expense through the year 2002 amortized using the
straight line basis over theremaining life of the old debt. The Authority completed the refunding to have bonds under
the 1993 bond resolution which has lower reserve requirements instead of 1979 bond resolution. The refunding
increases its total debt payments by $ 10,793,436 over the next nineteen years and obtains an economic gain
(difference between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $ 685,468. Asof June 30, 1999, $
43,570,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

The deferred amount of debt refundi ng at June 30, 1999 and 1998 is $ 445,080 and $ 599,652, respectively. The
amount of the unamortized bond premium and discounts at June 30, 1999 and 1998 is $ 3,416,351 and $
3,454,658, respectively.

Specia Revenue Fund:

The Authority administers the Paul Douglas Teacher Scholarship Program (formerly the Congressional Teacher
Scholarship Program). Thisisafederally funded scholarship program designed to attract bright high school students
and encoureage them to enter the field of teaching. As of June 30, 1995, the federal government has suspended the loan
program and the Authority will reimburse all funds collected for the program
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Special Revenue Fund (Continued):

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 and prior years, the SCSLC reimbursed the Authority for all administrative
costs of the program. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, the funds' deposits increased by $
25,798 and $ 46,027, respectively, from repayments by participants and for $ 339 and $ 600, respectively, for interest
receipts. The Authority expended $ 26,137 and $ 137,562 for repayment to the Federal Government during the year
ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively, due to suspension of the program.

Related Party Transactions:
The Authority has significant transactions with the State of South Carolinaand SCSLC.

Services received at no cost from State Agencies include maintenance of certain accounting records from the
Comptroller General, investment and banking functions from the State Treasurer, legal services from the Attorney
General, and grants services from the State Budget and Control Board.

The Authority paid the University of South Carolina $ 30,293 and $ 128,447 for the years ended June 30, 1999 and
1998, respectively, for data processing services and the expense is recorded as contractual expenses.

See Note 1.1 regarding transactions with SCSLC.

Employee Benefit Plans:

10.1The Authority provides retirement benefits through the South Carolina Student Loan Corporation Money
Purchase Pension Plan for all employees who have completed one year of service and attained age 21. SCSLC
has adopted the Wachovia Bank, N.A. Money Purchase Pension Plan, asingle employer plan. Wachovia Bank,
N.A. isthe Trustee of the Plan. The authority under which benefits provisions are established or amended, is
provided in the Plan document as administrated by the Plan Trustee. The Plan issues a stand-alone report
annually and may be obtained by writing to the South Carolina Student Loan Corporation, Post Office Box
21487, Columbia, S.C. 29221 or by caling (803) 772-9480. This is a defined contribution plan in which the
employer isrequired to contribute 5.6% of the participant’ s total annual compensation plus 5.6% of compensation
exceeding $ 14,520. Contributions are paid monthly. A participant is 20% vested after three years service and
100% vested after seven years. A participant receives normal retirement at age sixty-five. At termination of
employment or reaching normal retirement age, the participant has the right to elect to receive al or any portion
of hisvested benefit derived from employer contributions. Voluntary contributions are not permitted. Under the
plan, the portion of an employee’s account that has not vested when an employee terminates, called forfeitures,
reduces the employer’ s contribution in the year following the Plan year in which the forfeiture occurs. The total
pension expense is fully funded and isincluded in personnel expenses under the retirement category. The only
change made in the plan during the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998 wasto raise the contribution threshold
from $13,080in1998t0 $ 14,520in 1999. Pension expense, total salary and covered salary is asfollows:
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Employee Benefit Plans (Continued):

10.1

10.2

10.3

(Continued):

1999 1998
Total Salary $ 949,712 $ 864,587
Total Covered Sdary 800,391 618,264
Pension Expense (Actual and Required) 63,347 55,109
Percent Pension Expense to Covered Salary 7.91% 8.91%

In 1998, the SCSL C adopted a proposal to provide a supplemental retirement plan for its Vice Presidents, the
President and the Executive Vice President. Lifeinsurance policies were bought by the Corporation on each of
the participants. A portion of the net cost of the premiums on the life insurance policies is charged to the
Authority each year. The expenseis decreased by the increasein cash surrender value of lifeinsurance. Total
covered salaries of the participants were $ 162,275 and no expenses for the Authority were paid for 1998. The
expense, if any, is included under the personnel expense category. Amounts for employer contributions are
presently estimated by the Plan Administrators because the Plan has not been finalized.

The Plan was finalized on July 1, 1998 and the Authority will participate in it. The finalized Plan covers all
employees and previously contributed assets were used to fund the new Plan. The Plan is called the South
Carolina Student L oan Corporation Defined Benefit Plan, a single employer plan. The authority under which
benefit provision as established or amended is provided, inthe Plan document as administered by Plan Trustees.
The Plan isadefined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employeeswith one year of service and over
21 yearsof age. The Plan provides benefits based on participant earnings. The benefit formulausesone percent
(1%) of average five highest years pay of each eligible employee multiplied by the number of years of service
not to exceed 30 years. The Corporation’s funding policy is to make the minimum annual contribution that is
actuarially computed by the projected unit credit method required by the Plan. The Authority will contribute the
amount billed to them by the Corporation. The Corporation issues a publicly available financia report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the South Carolina Student Loan
Corporation Defined Benefit Plan. That report may be obtained by writing to South Carolina Student Loan
Corporation, Post Office Box 21487, Columbia, South Carolina 29221 or by calling (803) 772-9480.

Thetotal required and paid contributions for the year ended June 30, 1999 were $ 225,392 representing 28.16%
of covered salary of $800,391. Total salary was$ 949,712. Contributions are included in the personal expense
category.

Certain health care, dental, long-term disability and life insurance benefits are provided to active employees by
various private insurers. All full-time and part-time employees who worked at least 32 hours per week are
eligible to receive these benefits and are fully funded by the Authority. Employer contributions applicable to
those benefits were $ 194,778 and $ 187,801 in 1999 and 1998, respectively, and are recorded as expenses
under the personnel expense category, and are paid monthly as billed by insurers.
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Student L oan Guarantees:

The total approved amount and outstanding balance of student loans that the Authority has under guaranteeis as
follows at June 30:

1999 1998
Approved Amount for Loans $ 1,912,521,625 $ 1,642,790,757
Outstanding Balance 1,187,149,817 1,057,450,079

Arbitrage:

The Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and arbitrage rebate regulations issued by the IRS require rebate to the federal
government of excessinvestment earnings on bond proceedsiif the yield on those earnings exceeds the effective yield
on the related tax-exempt bonds issued. Regulations also exist for calculating rebate earnings in connection with the
accounting for bond proceeds, refunding issues, and proceeds that are commingled with other funds for investment
purlposes. Rebates are payable every five years from date of bond issue or upon maturity of the bonds, whichever is
earlier.

The South Carolina State Treasurer had computations made to determine the liability at June 30, 1999 and 1998.
Based on those results, the Authority incurred expense of $ 493,123 for 1999 and $ 153,377 for 1998. This expenseis
determined using the “Future Vaue’ method of determining cumulative arbitrage liability, as set forth in the U.S.
Treasury Regulations and is based on cash flows created by investment, sale, maturity of and earningson gross
bond proceeds. As of June 30, 1999 and 1998, the Authority reports $ 946,500 and $ 453,377, respectively, arbitrage
rebate liability.

Recall of FFEL P (Federal Student L oan) Reserve Funds:

The amount designated for federal student loan reservesisthe accumulated portion of retained earningsderived from
the Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFEL P) guarantee operations of the Authority and may only be used in
support of FFELP (See Note 6). On August 5, 1997, the Higher Education Act was amended by the Balanced Budget
Act of 1997. Under this amendment, the Secretary of Education (the Secretary) is required to recall $ 1 billion on
September 1, 2002 of FFELP reserve funds. The amount owed by each guarantor is based on the agency’s reserves
and reserve ratio as of September 30, 1996. For purposes of calculation, the reserves include any Federal Student
Loan Reserve Account fundsin cash or liquid assets held by the agency. Thereserveratio is defined as the amount of
the agency’s Federal Student Loan Reserve Account as of September 30, 1996 divided by the original principal
amount of all outstanding insured loans on that date. Each agency must transfer its required share to a separate
account in five equal annual installments for the federal fiscal years 1998 through 2002. The Authority’s estimated
amount of prorated share of the $ 1 billion is approximately $ 6.8 million, subject to fina determination by the
Secretary.

In December 1997, the Authority deposited into a separate account its first installment of $1,366,028 and in
December 1998 deposited the second installment of $ 1,366,028 and may not use the funds totaling $ 2,732,056 for
any purpose without the express written permission of the Secretary, except for performing certain default reduction
activities as outlined in the Balanced Budget Act of 1997. The funds are reflected in the long-term investments of the
Federal Student Loan Reserve Account. At the end of the five year period, the reserve funds in the separate account
will betransferred to the U.S. Department of Education with a corresponding reduction in retained earnings.
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1998 Reauthorization of the Higher Education Act:

Effective July 1, 1998, the Act added and deleted certain federal revenues. The Act also required a new account called
the Guarantee Agency Operating Account and replaced the L oan Guarantee Reserve Account with the Federal Student
Loan Reserve Account. Both accounts are described in Note 1.2.

Prior to the 1998 Reauthorization of the Higher Education Act, the loan account included an amount equal to one-third
of the insurance premiums withheld from borrowers on guaranteed loans to meet the expenses of the Authority as
guarantor and reimburse SCSL C for preclaims assistance and collection expenses incurred on behalf of the Authority.
The loan account was also used to deposit Administrative Cost Allowance, Supplemental Preclaims Assistance
Income and Retention on Default Collections which were billed by the Authority directly to the Department of

Education for services it performs in its role as guarantor and is used to offset administrative expenses. The

administrative cost allowance was based on new loans approved during the year. Supplemental preclaims assistance
was based on the number of accounts which did not default. The Act required all funds collected prior to September
30, 1998 to be used in the Federal Student Loan Reserve Account. The Loan Account now has no loan guarantees
reserved for the federal government.

The Act aso eliminated the Administrative Cost Allowance and Supplemental Preclaims Assistance effective October
1, 1998. The Act required that 100% of Supplemental Preclaims Assistance, 70% of Administrative Cost Allowance
and 100% of the Retention on Default Collection be recorded in the Federal Student Loan Reserve Account for the
quarter ending September 30, 1998. The Guarantee Agency Operating Account recorded remaining 30% of the
Administrative Cost Allowance for the same quarter.



SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Y2K ISSUE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Y ear 2000 Issue (Unaudited)

The Year 2000 (“Y2K") Issue arises because most computer software programs allocate two digits to the year date field on the
assumption that the first two digits will be 19. Without programming, such programs will interpret, for the example, the year
2000 asthe year 1900. Also, some programs may be unable to recognize that the year 2000 isaleap year.

The Year 2000 Issue may affect el ectronic equi pment containing computer chips that have date recognition features- such as
environmental systems, elevators, and vehicles - as well as computer software programs. In addition, the Year 2000 Issue
affects not only computer applications and equipment under the Authority’ s direct control, but also the system of other entities
with which the Authority transacts business. Some of the Authority’ s systems/equipment affected by the Y ear 2000 I ssue are
critical to the continued and uninterrupted operations of the Authority. The Authority uses computersfor its accounting, default
aversion activities, loan processing, default collections, bond monitoring and payroll and considers these to be mission critical.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Y 2K Issue, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts will not be fully
determinable until the year 2000 or thereafter. Management cannot assure that the Authority is or will be Y2K ready, the
Authority’ s remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the Authority does business
will be year 2000 ready.

The Authority has adopted aplan to be handled by Authority employees to conduct various assessments of Y 2K issues. A
project plan for remediation of Authority systems, including timeliness, has been devel oped, costs determined and resources
alocated. The Authority’s Y 2K plan includes multiple review steps to achieve compliance in all critical areas. Testing of all
remediated systems is part of the remediation project plan. No additional funding in fiscal year 2000 to support the
involvement of Authority employees or to provide the replacement or upgrade of Authority equipment, computer hardware and
computer applicationsis anticipated. The Authority’s management view isthat Y 2K funding is appropriate for the balance of
theinitiative.

Work to address the Y ear 2000 |ssue with respect to each system critical to conducting operations falls predominantly within
one of the following stages of work:

1 Awareness stage - Establishing abudget and project plan for dealing with the Y ear 2000 I ssue.

2 Assessment stage - Identifying the systems and components for which Y ear 2000 work is needed.

3. Remediation stage - Making changes to systems/equipment.

4, Validation/testing stage - Validating and testing changes that were made during the remediation stage.

At June 30, 1999, the Authority has completed the awareness and assessment stages with respect to mission-critical systems
and related equipment. The Authority is 95% complete in both its remediation and validation/testing stages of all mission
critical systems listed above and related equipment.

The Authority is also working with outside vendors including the Bank of New Y ork and the U. S. Department of Education to
assist in their compliance efforts so that no outside interruptions will occur.

The Authority is making contingency plans for the possible failure of computer systems and embedded devices and also for
possible interruptions to the Authority’ s business.
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Sheet 1
Required by Bond Indentures Guarantee Federal Student Inter-
Sinking Debt Reserve Loan Agency Operating  Loan Reserve Account
ASSETS Account Account Account Account Account Eliminations Total
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Deposits Underinvested (Overinvested) (279,296) $ S (95,898) § $ 502,662 $ s 127,468
Investments 20,945,726 68,542,930 ,641,289 15,732,370 106,862,315
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted:
Deposits Underinvested (Overinvested) 3,190,000 3,190,000
Investments 19,901,843 19,901,843
Prepaid Expense 255,367 255,367
Receivables:
Current Portion of Finance Loans 69,543,309 69,543,309
Current Portion of Student Loans - FISL 3,525 3,525
Due from South Carolina Student Loan Corporation 6,469,818 6,469,818
Accrued Interest Receivable 716,044 8,008 11,262 195,845 931,159
Federal Reinsurance Receivable 3,376,848 3,376,848
Loan Processing and Issuance Fee Receivable 150,040 150,040
Default Aversion Fee Receivable 1,479,043 1,479,043
Due from Other Funds 39,954 347,352 (387,306)
Miscellaneous 6,265 83,878 90,143

s 27,902,036 $ 23,091,843 § 138684946 $ 3281634 $ 19,807,725 § (387,306) $ _ 212,380,878

Finance Loans, Less Current Portion S $ $ 291995886 $ 3 S $ 291,995,886
Student Loans - FISL, Less Current Portion 9,911 9,911
Deferred Cost of Issuance of Bonds 1,058,976 1,058,976
Investments 2,732,086 2,732,086
Restricted Assets:
Investments 16,652,949 , 16,652,949
Total Long-Term and Other Assets $ 9911 $ 16,652,949 § 293,054,862 $ - $ 2,732,086 $ - S 312,449,808
Property, Plant & Equipment:
Furniture and Equipment 3 $ $ 3 24,105 § 238,840 §$ i 262,945
Automobile 13,100 13,100
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (45,327) (45,327)
Total Property, Plant & Equipment $ $ -8 -3 24,105 $ 206,613 $ S 230,718

Total Assets $ 27,911,947 § 39,744,792 $ 431,739,808 § 3,305,739 3 22,746,424 § (387,306) $§ 525,061,404




LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Arbitrage Rebate Payable to Federal Government
Compensated Absences
Due to South Carolina Student Loan Corporation
Due to Other Funds
Default Aversion Fees Payable
Payable from Restricted Assets:

Current Maturities of Bonds Payable

Accrued Bond Interest Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Bonds Payable, Less Current Maturities, Deferred

Amount of Debt Refunding and Bond Premiums and
Discounts

Total Liabilities

Fund Equity:
Retained Earnings:

Reserved for Bond Indentures - Current Debt Service -
1979 Resolution

Reserved for Bond Indentures - Current Debt Service -
1993 Resolution

Reserved for Bond Indentures - 1979 Resolution

Reserved for Bond Indentures - 1993 Resolution

Unreserved
Total Fund Equity (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity

N

$

$

N

$

‘ Sheet 2
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY
ENTERPRISE FUND
BALANCE SHEET BY ACCOUNTS
JUNE 30, 1999
Required by Bond Indentures Guarantee  Federal Student Inter
Sinking Debt Reserve Loan Agency Operating  Loan Reserve Account ‘
Account Account Account Account Account Eliminations | Total
14127 § s 122,006 §$ 5 $ $ 136,223
946,500 ‘ 946,500
| 74,955 ‘ ‘ 74,955
8,621,305 83,879 307 | 8,705,491
387,306 ‘ (387,306) ‘
479,043 1,479,043
9,770,000 9,770,000
5,130,246 - , 5,130,246
8635432 § 15846746 $ 197,051 $ 471,185 § 1,479,350 § (387,306) $ 26,242 458
375,677,680 § $ 5 $ 5 $ 375,677,680
384,313,112 § 15,846,746 § 197,051 § 471,185 § 1,479,350 $ (387,306) § _ 401,920,138
$ 1230297 § s s s $ 230,297
o 11,942806 11,942,806
(50,619,395) 10,723 001 47,904,420 8,008,026
(305,781,770) 1,942 382,831,395 77,051,567
o 806,942 2,834,554 21,267,074 24,908,570
$ (356,401,165) $ 23,898,046 $ 431542757 $ 2834554 $ 21267074 $ $ 123,141,266
27911,947 § 39744792 431739808 § 3305739 § 22746424 $ (387,306) $ 525,061,404

SCHEDULE 1




SCHEDULE 2

Sheet 1
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY
ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS BY ACCOUNTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999
Required by Bond Indentures Guarantee Federal Student
Sinking Debt Reserve Loan Agency Operating Loan Reserve
Account Account Account Account Account Total
Operating Revenue:

United States Department of Education: ‘ ‘ | ‘ | ‘ |
Administrative Cost Allowance $ $ $ $ 258812 $ 603,523 $ 862,335
Loan Processing and Issuance Fee 377,279 377,279
Account Maintenance Fee 1,177,090 1,177,090
Supplemental Preclaims Assistance Income | 301,266 301,266
Default Aversion Fee Income 1,479,043 | 1,479,043

& Retention on Default Collections 908,568 260,625 1,169,193
Insurance Premiums 974,225 974,225
Income from South Carolina Student Loan Corporation:
Subsidized Interest 3,517,765 3,517,765
Special Allowance 4,097,885 4,097,885
Non-Subsidized Interest 23,725,825 23,725,825
Late Charges 356,242 356,242
Miscellaneous Payments of Student Loans 190 190

Investment Income 6,622,228 41,648 46,138 1,077,054 7,787,068

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments (93,596) (156,667) 20,801 (289,616) (665,822)
Total Operating Revenue $ 38226539 § (146,744) $ (115,019) $ 4,267,731 $ 2,927,077 $ 45,159,584

Operating Expenses: |

Personnel $ 1,177,248 § 332,113 $ 1,509,361 |

Contractual Services 163,216 66,436 229,652

General Operating 302,932 174,127 477,059

South Carolina Student Loan Corporation for Operations 5,368,495 (185,903) 5,182,592



Operating Expenses:
Bond Interest Expense
Amortization - Deferred Cost of Bond Issuance
Default Aversion Fee Expense
Other Fees
Total Operating Expenses

[¥%)
*Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Expenses: |
Arbitrage Expense

Income (Loss) Before Transfers Between Accounts |

Transfers Between Accounts:
Transfer In
Transfer (Out)
Total Transfers Between Accounts

Net Income (Loss)

Retained Earnings (Deficit), Beginning
Retained Earnings (Deficit), Ending

Sheet 2
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY
ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS BY ACCOUNTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999
Required by Bond Indentures Guarantee  Federal Student
Sinking Debt Reserve Loan Agency Operating Loan Reserve |
Account Account Account Account Account Total
532,743 $ 17,816,705 § '$ $ 8 18,349,448
118,732 118,732
‘ | 1,479,044 1,479,044
| 940,146 _ 440,405 10,151 231,029 1,621,731
1,472,889 $§ 17816705 $ 5927632 $ 1653547 $ 2,096,846 $ 28,967,619
36,753,650 § _ (17,963,449) §  (6,042,651) $ 2,614,184 § 830231 $ 16,191,965
$  (493,123) § $ $ $ (493,123)
36,753,650 § _ (18456,572) $ _ (6,042,651) § 2,614,184 §$ 830,231 § 15,698,842
104341,709 § 55,185,828 § 88,210,657 $ 220370 $  13,005859 $ 260,964,423
(154,249.966)  (39,347,195)  (67,367,262) (260,964,423)
(49908257) $ 15,838,633 $ 20,843,395 $ 220370 $ 13,005,859 $ -
(13,154,607) §  (2,617,939)§ 14,800,744 $ 2834554 $ 13836000 $ 15,698,842
(343,246,558) 26515985 416,742,013 7,430,984 107,442,424
(356,401,165) $ 23,898,046 $ 431,542,757 $ 2834554 $§  21267,074 $§ 123,141266

5

§

$

5

$

SCHEDULE 2




SE

SCHEDULE 3

Sheet 1
SOUTH CARQOLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY
ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS BY ACCOUNTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999
Required by Bond Indentures Guarantee Federal Student
Sinking Debt Reserve Loan Agency Operating Loan Reserve ‘
Account Account Account Account Account Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
Operating Income (Loss) $ 36,753,650 § (17,963,449) %  (6,042,651) $ 2,614,184 § 830,231 § 16,191,965
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income

(Loss) to Net Cash Provided By (Used in) Operating Activities:
Finance Loan Advances to South Carolina Student Loan

Corporation for Student Loans (110,856,367) (110,856,367)
Finance Loan Payments Received from South Carolina ‘ ‘ |
Student Loan Corporation ‘ 76,657,285 76,657,285
Payments Received on FISL Loans 3,084 ‘ 3,084
Purchase of Student Loans Under Loan Guarantees (14,345,137) (14,345,137)

Payments Received from US Department of Education Under

Federal Reinsurance Program ‘ 12,581,787 12,581,787
Amortization of Cost of Bond Issuance ‘ 118,732 118,732
Amortization of Deferred Amount of Refunding - Interest Expense 154,572 154,572
Amortization of Premiums and Discounts on Bonds Payable - ‘ ‘

Interest Expense 378,172 ‘ ‘ ‘ 378,172
Investment Income (Investing Activities Category) (6,622,228) (41,649) (46,138) (1,077,054) (7,787,069)
Depreciation Expense 45,327 45,327
Net (Increase) Decrease in Fair Value of Invesmtents Reported ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

as Cash Equivalents (Investing Activities Category) 93,596 146,744 156,667 (20,801) 289,616 665,822
Bond Interest Expense (Noncapital Financing Activities Category) 17,816,705 17,816,705
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: ‘ ‘ ‘

Increase in Prepaid Expense ‘ (50,180) (50,180)

Decrease in Due from South Carolina Student Loan Corporation (340,971) (340,971)

Decrease in Administrative Cost Allowance Receivable 832,856 832,856

Increase in Loan Processing and Issuance Fee Receivable (150,040) (150,040)

Increase in Default Aversion Fee Receivable ‘ ‘ (1,479,043) (1,479,043)

Increase in Due from Other Funds (39,954) (347,352) (387,306)

Increase in Miscellaneous Receivables (6,265) (83,878) (90,143)

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 7,203 (52,449) (890) (46,136)

Increase in Compensated Absences Liability 14,804 14,804

Increase in Due to Other Funds 387,306 387,306

Increase in Default Aversion Fee Payable ‘ 1,479,043 1,479,043

Increase in Due to South Carolina Student Loan Corporation 2,636,209 . 83,879 307 2,720,395

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $_ 33,017,068 §. $ (39,694,182) $ 1389347 § (196,770) $  (5,484,537)
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Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities (Continued):
Proceeds from Issuing Revenue Bonds For Student Loans
Transfer of Bonds Payable to Debt Service Accounts
Transfer of Cost of Issuance to Deferred Amount of Refunding
Payment of Bond Premium

Payment of Bond Call Premium
Repayment of Revenue Bonds

Transfer to Current Bonds Payable from Sinking Account
Cost of Bond Issuance

Operating Transfers:

In from Other Accounts

Out to Other Accounts

Interest Paid on Revenue Bonds

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Net Cash (Used in) Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest Received on Investment Securities
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of Investments
Purchase of Investments
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments Reported as
Cash Equivalents
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

SCHEDULE 3

Sheet 2
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999
Required by Bond Indentures Guarantee Federal Student
Sinking Debt Reserve Loan Agency Operating Loan Reserve
Account Account Account Account Account Total
$ 67,300,000 $ $ $ $ $ 67,300,000
(53,340,000) (53,340,000)
(170,488) 170,488
(339,865) (339,865)
(275,400) (275,400)
(44,840,000) (44,840,000)
53,340,000 53,340,000
(82,954) (82,954)
104,341,709 55,185,828 88,210,657 220,370 13,005,859 260,964,423
(154,249,966) (39,347,195) (67,367,262) (260,964,423)
(18,268,675) _ (18,268,675)
$ (36,734010)$ 6,069,958 $ 20,930,929 $ 220,370 $ 13,005,859 $ 3,493,106
$ $ $ $ (24,105) § 51,940) $ 276,045
$ - 8 - 8 - $ (24,105) $ (251,940) $ (276,045)
$ 6,701,321 § $ 165,923 § 34,876 $ 929,458 $ 7,831,578
3,380,602 5,315,821 1,263,327 9,959,750
(5,862,411) (2,553,383) (8,415,794)
(93,596) 146,744 156,667 20,801 (289,617) (665,823)
$ 6,607,725 §  (2,628,553) § 5,325,077 § 55677 $ (650,215) $ 8,709,711
$ 2,890,783 § 3,441,405 § (13,438,176) $ 1,641,289 $§ 11,906,934 $ 6,442,235
17,775,648 19,650,438 81,885,207 4,328,098 123,639,391
$ 20,666,431 $__ 23,091,843 _$ 68,447,031_$ 1,641,289 $ 16,235,032 _$ 130,081,626



SCHEDULE 3

Sheet 3
CAROLINA STA' ISTAN
ENTERPRISE FUND
A C
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999
Required by Bond Indentures Guarantee Federal Student
Sinking Debt Reserve Loan Agency Operating Loan Reserve
Account Account Account Account Account Total
Interest Collected onFmame and FISL Loans - Operating Activities $ 26,902,619 $ $ $ $ $ 26902619
SUD] i-m.-ulr_
Rebate Llabnmy Rc]ated to Non-Opemung Arbltrage Rebate
Expense - Non-Capital Financing Activity $ $ 493,123 $ - 8 - $ - $ 493,123
Amortization of Deferred Cost of Issuance of Bonds - Operating
Activity $ $ $ 170,488 § $_ $ 170,488

Amortization of Deferred Amount of Debt Refunding - Operating
Activity $ 445,888 $ $ $ $ $ 445,888




'SCHEDULE 4

SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY
ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES AND CAPITAL ADDITIONS COMPARED TO BUDGET
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Favorable
Operating Expenses: Budget ~Actual (Unfavorable)
Personnel:
Staff Salaries $ 1,039,600 $ 949,712 § 89,888
Social Security 77,850 67,529 10,321
Group Insurance 206,500 194,778 11,722
Retirement - Defined Contribution 93,500 70,306 23,194
Unemployment 2,025 1,645 380
Total Personnel Before Retirement - Defined Benefit $ 1,419475 $ 1,283,970 $ 135,505
Contractual: )
Loan Servicing $ 194,500 $ 185,880 $ 8,620
Legal 10,200 1,449 8,751
Accounting 2,100 3,080 (980)
Credit Bureau Fees 13,200 10,375 2,825
Enrollment Verification 33,500 28,868 4632
Total Contractual $ 253,500 $ 229652 $ 23,848
General Operating: )
Rent $ 65,500 $
Telephone 71,200
Printing 47,200
Postage 135,650
Supplies 26,000
Travel 35,000
Equipment Maintenance 12,750
Subscriptions & Fees 6,500
Meeting and Conference Expenses 1,500
Insurance - General and Automotive 17,100
Contingencies 15,000
Depreciation -
Total General Operating '$
Capital Additions: )
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures $ 92,000 $ 276,045 $ (184,045)
Total Personnel Expenses Before Retirement - Defined o
Benefit $ 1,283,970
Retirement - Defined Benefit 225,391
Total Personnel Expenses '$ 1,509,361
Total Contractual 229,652
Total General Operating 477,059
Total Operating Expenses $ 2,216,072
South Carolina Student Loan Corporation Operating Costs 5,182,592
Other Expenses:
Interest on Bonds 18,349,448
Amortization - Deferred Cost of Bond Issuance 118,732
Default Aversion Fee Expense 1,479,043
Other Fees 1,621,732
Total Expenses $ 28,967,619
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SCHEDULE S

SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF ORGANIZATIONAL DATA

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

CREATION

Created by Act No. 433 of the Acts and Joint Resolutions of the General Assembly for the year 1971, now codified as Chapter
115, Title 59 of the 1976 Code (the "Act"). The Constitutionality of the Act was sustained in Durham vs. McL eod, 259 S.C.
409, 192 E. 2d 202, appeal dismissed 413 U.S. 902.

To make, insure and guarantee student |oans; to acquire contingent interest in student loans from eligible banks or other lending
institutions (up to 100% of the face amount thereof); to develop and administer al programs and to perform all functions
necessary or convenient to promote and facilitate the making, guaranteeing and insuring of student loans and to provide such
other student loan assistance and services as the Authority shall deem necessary or desirable and to enable it to qualify for
loans, grants, insurance and other benefits and assistance under any program of the United States now or hereafter authorized
fostering student loans; to appoint one or more banking institutions asits fiscal agent to perform such functions with respect to
student loans and its revenue bonds; to approve as eligible, institutions otherwise qualified as such.

MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY

Name Office Held
James H. Hodges Governor of South Carolina
Grady L. Patterson, Jr. State Treasurer of South Carolina
James A. Lander Comptroller General of South Carolina
John Drummond Chairman, South Carolina Senate

Finance Committee

Robert W. Harrell, Jr. Chairman, South Carolina House of

Representatives Ways and M eans
Committee



SCHEDULE 6
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

SCHEDUL E OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

CFDA Amount of
Federal Grantor/Program Title Number Grant Expenses
U.S. Department of Education Programs
Federal Family Education L oan Program:
Direct:
Administrative Cost Allowance 84.032 $ $ 862,335
Loan Processing and Issuance Fee 84.032 377,279
Account Maintenance Fee 84.032 1,177,090
Supplemental Preclaims Assistance Income 84.032 301,266
Default Aversion Fee Income 84.032 1,479,043
Retention on Default Collections 84.032 1,169,193
Passed Through South Carolina Student L oan Corporation:
Specia Allowances 84.032 4,097,885
Subsidized Interest 84.032 3,517,765
Total Federal Family Education Loan Program (Major Program) $12,981,856
Paul Douglas Teacher’s Scholarship Program (Note 4) 84.176
Total Department of Education $12,981,856

Notes - CEDA #84.032:

1. The tota approved amount at June 30, 1999, of al student loans under guarantee by the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority was$1,912,521,625. Thetotal outstanding balance of these loans wes$
1,187,149,817. Adminigtrative Cost Allowanceis paid for new loans approved during the fiscal year. Specia Allowances and Subsidized Interest are earned based on outstanding balance. Supplemental Preclaims Assistance
Income is also earned based on the number of loans that do not subsequently default for which Supplemental Preclaims activity is applicable (performed). The Account maintenance fee is based on average principal
outstanding for the fiscal year for loans serviced. The loan processingand issuancefeeis based on loans originated during thefiscal year. The default aversion feeis based on the balance of principa and interest on aloan thet
was prevented from defaulting.

2. The South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority received $ 12,581,787 during the year ended June 30, 1999, under Federd Reinsurance Agreements pursuiant to Sections 428A and 428(c) of the Higher Education Act
of 1965, as amended.

3.  Thetotal value at June 30, 1999, since inception, of all defaulted student loanswhich the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority has purchesed under Federd reinsurance agreementswas $ 60,615,317. Retention
of Default Collections is generated when the Authority retains a portion of the amount it collects on these loans on behalf of the Federal Government.

Notes - CEDA #84.176:

4.  Program participants repaid $ 25,798 to the Authority. The Program also earned interest income of $ 339. The Authority owes the Federal Government $ 74,996 at June 30, 1999.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Members of the Authority
South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority
Columbia, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority as of and for the year
ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated September 3, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gover nment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Gover nment Auditing Standards

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of
the internal control over financia reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or
more of the internal control components does not reduce to arelatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that
would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period
by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management and the U.S. Department of Education and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

September 3, 1999



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' SREPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR
A-133

To the Members of the Authority
South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority
Columbia, South Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S, Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 1999. The South Carolina State Education Assistance
Authority’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors result section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the South Carolina State Education
Assistance Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority’s compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority complied, in al material respects, with the
reguirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999.

Internal Control Over Compliance
The management of the South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws,




To the Members of the Authority
South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority
Page 2

regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a mgjor federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being
audited may occur and not be detected within atimely period by employeesin the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operations that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management and the U.S. Department of Education and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

September 3, 1999



SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

1. Summary of Auditor’s Results:

(i) Type of report issued on financial statements Unqualified
(i) Reportable material weaknessesin internal
control over financial reporting None Identified
(iii) Reportable conditions not considered to be
material weaknessesin internal control None Identified
(iv) Noncompliance material to the financial
statements None Noted
(v) Material weaknessesin internal control over
major programs None Identified
(vi) Reportable conditions not considered to be
material weaknessesin internal control over
major programs None Identified
(vii) Type of report issued on compliance for major
programs Unqualified
(viii)  Audit findings required to be reported under
paragraph .510(a) OMB 133 None Disclosed
(ix) Identification of major programs:;
U.S. Department of Education:
Federal Family Education L oan Program: CFDA# Expenditure
Administrative Cost Allowance 84032 $ 86233H
L oan Processing and Issuance Fee 84.032 377,279
Account Maintenance Fee 84.032 1,177,090
Supplemental Preclaims Assistance Income 84.032 301,266
Default Aversion Fee Income 84.032 1,479,043
Retention on Default Collections 84.032 1,169,193
Passed Through South Carolina Student L oan
Corporation:
Special Allowances 84.032 4,097,885
Subsidized Interest 84.032 3,517,765
Total Federal Family Education Loan
Program (Major Program) $12,987.856
x) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs $389,456
(xi) South Carolina State Education Assistance Authority qualifies
asalow risk auditee under paragraph .530 OMB 133 Yes

2. Findingsrelated to the financial statements which are required
to bereported in accordance with GAGAS None Reported

3. Findings and questioned costs for Federal awardsincluding
audit findings as defined in paragraph .510(a) OMB 133

(0] Audit findings (e.g., internal control findings, compliance
findings, questioned costs, or fraud) None Reported
(i) Audit findings which relate to both the financial

statements and Federal awards None Reported

SCHEDULE 7



SCHEDULE 8

SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

JUNE 30, 1999

There are no prior audit findings and questioned costs relative to Federal Awards.



SCHEDULE 9

SOUTH CAROLINA STATE EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY

SCHEDUL E OF CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

JUNE 30, 1999

Thereisno corrective action plan required since there are no prior audit findings and questioned costs relative to Federal
Awards.





